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Corrigendum 
 

Subject:- Clarifications sought through CPP Portal 

 
Name of Work:- Request for proposal (RFP) for Concession to design, fit-out, finance, 
develop, market, operate, maintain and manage the Retail Outlets at Shaheed Bhagat 
Singh International Airport, Chandigarh 

 
Sr. 

No 

Query Reply 

1. Are the current or existing Retail 

outlets considered in this tender. If 

not considered, what would be the 

total number of outlets.  

 

ii. What are the current categories or 

brands being retailed. 

 

14 Nos. of Standalone Retail outlets are currently 

operating at the airport with an area admeasuring 233 

sqm in Domestic SHA. Layout of current retail outlets 

is enclosed below at page no 7. 
 

Total assigned area under the Master Concession is 

1213 sqm in Arrivals, Domestic SHA and Int’l SHA. 
 

May refer, Concessioned Premises Layout Plan – 

Schedule – A and Schedule – C for details.  
 

The categories currently being retailed are Personal 

Care products, Cosmetics, fragrances, Destination 

merchandise, Bags, Leather Goods, Footwear, 

Leather Accessories, Men/Women/Kids Apparel & 

Fashion wear, Electronics products, Confectionary, 

Sweets, candies, packaged water, Snack in sealed 

aseptic pack, Gifting Items, Toys  
 

Bidders may visit the Airport for Physical Inspection 

of Concessionaire Managed Locations with prior 

intimation to Authority for better understanding. 
 

2. Can the spaces in the RFP be 

divided into multiple outlets and or 

combined to make outlet 

To be governed as per Schedule L of RFP, Page No 

202. 

3. Can the bidder bid only for the 

Domestic or International or 

Arrivals. 

 

No, the bidder has to bid for the total assigned area 

under the Concession i.e. 1213 sqm. 
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4. Are there other outlets in the 

Kerbside or Checkin Area. If so how 

many and what categories and 

brands are being retailed. 

Retail outlets are currently being operated in 

domestic SHA only. 

5. Can the bidder bring in categories 

or brands not specified in RFP 

Brands not falling within the indicative list provided 

under Appendix-V, may also be considered and 

permitted by Authority at post award stage at its sole 

discretion, to which bidder / concessionaire must 

obtain approval / permission of Authority in writing 

within business incubation period. 

6. Need dwgs for the pax flow in 

Domestic, International and 

Arrivals 

Data not available 

7. Need dwgs and locations of existing 

Retail and Food and Beverage 

Outlets 

Layouts enclosed below at page no 7 and 8. 

8. What is the warehousing space 

available and the rentals for the 

same 

 

Service area may be provided subject to availability 

and as per approval of the Competent Authority. 

“Service Area(s)” shall mean any kitchen area, 

storage area, record room, etc. (which may be located 

within or outside passenger terminal building) as 

Authority may allow access to pursuant to the grant 

of Concession and accepted by the Concessionaire in 

relation to implementing the Concession. 

For space rentals, may please refer Article 14 page no 

152. 

9. What percentage of store space can 

be taken for BOH 

 

Service area may be provided subject to availability 

and as per approval of the Competent Authority. 

“Service Area(s)” shall mean any kitchen area, 

storage area, record room, etc. (which may be located 

within or outside passenger terminal building) as 

Authority may allow access to pursuant to the grant 

of Concession and accepted by the Concessionaire in 

relation to implementing the Concession. 

For space rentals, may please refer Article 14 page no 

152. 

10. Can we propose hybrid concepts 

like adding packed foods or fast-

moving goods as a part of retail 

offering 

No, The Concessionaire shall only retail / sell the 

items at the retail outlets in the Airport as per clause 

5.2.5 of RFP page no. 46. 
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11. Can we sub-lease the locations 

 

May refer RFP Pg No 170, Article – 21, Clause 21.4 

12. Are there any cam charges 

applicable? If yes, then please let us 

know the charges. 

May please refer Article 14, page no 152. 

13. What proportion of pax depart from 

the Bus Gate and aerobridges 

Approximately 50-60 % aircrafts use aerobridge 

 

14. How many pax are departing from 

and to Chandigarh Airport. Please 

share the details of gate utilisation. 

 

Pax data may be taken from AAI website. Gate 

utilisation data not available. 
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Clarifications sought through email: 

Sr. No. Queries Reply 

1. Flight & Passenger Data:   

 Current load factors for different sectors and 

airline split. 

Data not available 

 Flight timings for the 41 flights. As per attachment below at page no. 6 

 Passengers mix for international flights. Data not available 

 

2. Sales & Retail Performance:  

 Current sales of the 14 stores, along with 

product category breakdown. 

Data not available 

 Current sales data for the Duty-Free \(DF\) 

area, with category-wise details. 

Data not available 

 

3. Financials & Expenses:  

 Is CAM included in the ₹50L rent from the 14 

retailers, or is it separate? 

Concession fee of currently operated 

14 retail outlets is approx. Rs. 47.74 

Lakhs (excluding CAM & GST.) 

 Any additional expenses to be borne \(e.g., 

utilities\)? 

May please refer Article 14, page no 

152. 

 Breakdown of the ₹50L current rental split. Concession fee of currently operated 

14 retail outlets is approx. Rs. 47.74 

Lakhs and CAM Charges approx. 

Rs.91,000/- plus 18% GST. 

 CAM charges – is it 10% of space rent or 

₹1,250/sqm? How much are the current 

incumbents paying? 

May please refer Article 14, page no 

152. 

 

4. Infrastructure & Planning:  

 Any Capex incurred by the airport currently? Only bare space was provided to the 

Licensees operating standalone Retail 

Outlets. 
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 Is 1,212.3 sqm considered Phase 1? What is 

planned for Phase 2? \(Clouse no 5.6.2 

Schedule E page no 186\) 

Gross floor area is 1,213 sqm for the 

concession period of 7 years.  

May please refer Clause 5.6.2, page no 

49. 

 Location details of the 14 current stores \(e.g., 

R02, RK1, etc.\). 

Layout enclosed below at page no 7 

 Common area to be considered for QMG 

calculations \(B3\). 

Question not clear. 

 

5. Tender & Lease Terms:  

 Lock-in period and current Security Deposit 

\(SD\) of the 14 incumbent stores. 

Lock-in period is 50% of the contract 

period. 

SD amount is equivalent to 6 months of 

License Fee. 

 Tender timelines – when will we get the 

handover? From that point, do we have four 

months before MMG payments start? 

As per RFP 

 Checklist of schedules we need to submit 

\(e.g., Proposal on Customer Service, etc.\). 

As per RFP 
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Layout of current retail outlets 
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Layout of current F&B Outlets 

 

 
 
 

Bid Manager  

For Chief Executive Officer  

Chandigarh International Airport Limited 


